
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
JULY 1, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 
Commissioner’s Meeting Room – Ground Floor Ste. 16 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  
NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – CARL PENNAMON, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL     
DISTRICT 5  - DOUG LUKE     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 2 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
                    
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
Approval of Minutes: 

 Work Session Minutes, May 13, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, May 20, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 3, 2019 
 Regular Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 10, 2019 

 
2.   Check Register – Check #’s 55392-55645 
 
VI.   Public Hearing  

 
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 
 
 

 
VIII. Presentations/Delegations –  

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.   

 

VII. County Commissioner Items 



 

 

2018 CAFR Presentation – Clifton, Lipford, Hardison and Parker 
 
IX.   Regular Agenda 
 
Old Business:   

1. Right-of-Way Mowing Equipment Bid Award 
 
 

New Business: 
1. Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority - New Board Member Approval 
2. Ocmulgee Circuit Public Defender’s Office - Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement 
3. Senior Center - NEGRC Area Agency on Aging Contract – FY 2020 
4. Senior Center - NEGRC Coordinated Transportation Contract – FY 2020 
5. Senior Center - G.A. Food Service Contract – FY 2020 
6. Senior Center Budget Amendments – FY 2019 – Additional Funding from NEGRC AAA 
7. Senior Center Budget Amendments – FY 2019 – CDBG Facility Expansion Expenditures 

 
 

 X.   County Attorney Items 
 
 XI.   County Manager Update 

 
XII.   Citizen Comments  

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission for 
not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please be 
courteous of the 3 minute time limit. 

 
XIII. Executive Session 
        
Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real   estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and, discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 
      
   XIV. Adjournment  
 
  



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  July 1, 2019 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 

 Work Session Minutes, May 13, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, May 20, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 3, 2019 
 Regular Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 10, 2019 

 
Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve minutes for:  
 

 Work Session Minutes, May 13, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, May 20, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 3, 2019 
 Regular Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 
 Work Session Minutes, June 10, 2019 

  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: May 13, 2019– Work Session  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

May 13, 2019 

Work Session Minutes 

5:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the work session to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance:   

Invocation: Sheriff Pope 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Gerald 
Stunkel, Doug Luke 

Work Session: 

Chairman Pennamon noted that Staff has worked hard fine tuning the projected revenues. We have a projected 
budget of $10,691,453 and an obligated and mandated budget of $10,657,266 which leaves us $34,187 under our 
mandated budget. We have enough revenue to fund the mandated. 

Mr. Benton reviewed the requested additional positions in Jail, Senior Center, and Animal Control. 

Mr. Benton discussed the State Senior Employment Program.  

Ms. Robinson expounded on how the Senior Program works.  

Chairman Pennamon suggested to move the part time employee in Animal Control to a full-time position and 
allow the current part time person to fill the full-time position.  

Sheriff Pope noted that his request for additional person is affected mostly by jail population. He no longer has 
excess personnel in the jail to fulfill the requirements that are being made by the extra population.  

Chairman Pennamon suggested that we add the jailer at approximately $53,129. Add $4563.95 to the capital 
outlay page for election equipment.  

Chairman Pennamon noted that there was a vote several years ago to keep the fund-balance at 4.5 Million. He 
suggested using it for capital and pay increases.  

Comm.  Henry suggested pulling out anything that is wages and capital. 

Mr. Benton clarified that the capital expenditures would drop by $168,000 and would add $9,000 for operation 
cost if we change the purchase time by three months.  

Mr. Benton noted that the Tax Commissioner had a request of $39,750 for software.  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: May 13, 2019– Work Session  
 

Chris Finch noted that most of their equipment is from the 90s and 2000s. Most of this equipment is not able to 
work properly. 

Chairman Pennamon requested that the items be prioritized based on needs; he suggested Chief Finch and County 
Manager go back over his budget.  

Comm. Luke suggested to take the Tender off for a year.  

Chairman Pennamon declared the Work Session closed at 5:46 p.m. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 22, 2019– Called Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

May 20, 2019 

Work Session Minutes 

5:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the work session to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance:   

Invocation: Commissioner Pennamon 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Gerald 
Stunkel. Doug Luke was absent. 

Work Session: 

Kelly Fox presented insurance information update for the past few years and how we came to be with ABA, the 
current TPA provider. The renewal offer at ABA came back 3% increase over current. He recommended staying 
with ABA due to the minimal increase. $150,000 to $200,000 will be in the lost fund at the end of June. One item 
that is built into the increase is Reference based pricing. With referenced based plans the insurance would pay the 
providers 150% reimbursement above Medicare reimbursement rates. This will allow for more reserves for the 
county and to negotiate with the providers. We eliminate the employee monthly fee and reimbursement is reduced 
10-15% average. It would increase our Loss Reserve Fund by 20% next year. This allows the employees to pay 
reduced copays and deductible goes away when using local. If they use local there is no cost for the county or 
employee. They bought an online software to allow new employees to do onboarding and open enrollment. Kelly 
recommended that the county move to Trans-America from AFLAC supplemental services because their prices 
are substantially lower.  

Kristy Tribble, Animal Control noted they would like to have 3 full-time people on staff that can run calls in order 
to be covered 24/7.  

Mr. Benton noted that Chief Finch still wants the ambulance.  

Chairman Pennamon declared the Work Session closed at 5:38 p.m. 

 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: June 3, 2019– Work Session  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

June 3, 2019 

Work Session Minutes 

5:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the work session to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Gerald 
Stunkel. Doug Luke was absent. 

Work Session: 

Chairman Pennamon noted that at the last work session staff was asked to add in the 4% pay increases along 
with 2 employees in Roads and Bridges, and Sheriff fuel increase. 

Mike Benton noted they have all been added and are shown on the consolidated page. 

Mike Benton noted the total tentative budget is $11,090,772. 

Chairman Pennamon clarified this is no tax increase. 

Mr. Benton clarified the projected rollback of 15.451 is $10,691,453 which there is no tax increase in that 
rollback revenue. 

Mr. Benton noted the line item of pay increase will go away and be put into each department. 

Mr. Benton noted the Budget and 5-year History Digest will go in Thursday’s paper if we have a consensus; and 
we will schedule Public Hearings. 

Board members agreed they have a Consensus to advertise. 

Chairman Pennamon clarified $11,090,772 will be the budget, $10,691,453 comes from digest revenues and 
15.451 rollback rate; and the difference of $399,319 will come from fund balance or excess revenue. 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:12 pm. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

June 3, 2019 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vic-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, Gerald 
Stunkel, and Doug Luke. 

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Clerk, Sharon Robinson, Finance Director, Dennis Pate, Sheila 
Belcher, Administrative Specialist, and County Attorney, David Ozburn.  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

Don Jernigan, District 3 

Agenda Approval: 

Comm. Luke made motion approve the agenda as presented, Comm. Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Consent Agenda: 

Minutes:  

Comm. Henry made motion to approve the Called Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019, Work Session Minutes 
of May 6, 2019, and Regular Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2019, Comm. Stunkel seconded; passed unanimously. 

Check Register: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the check register which included check #’s 55149 - 55391 for 
payment, Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Public Hearing: 

None 
 

Commissioner’s Items: 

Stunkel - None 

Luke – Asked if there was any recent news on Pitts Chapel Bridge. Call from gentleman, Mr. Purvis on 
Rainbow Drive requesting it to be triple surfaced.   



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

Mr. Benton noted he received an email from Marshall Troup; the construction period has been changed from 
May to June. In reference to triple surface, we are on second project and are halfway done. He will get with Mr. 
Luke on the Rainbow Drive request. 

Jernigan – Asked for an update on striping and signage on Jackson Lake Road. Thanked Preston Campbell and 
Public Works for all their hard work. 

Mr. Benton noted he needs to reach back out as he has not heard anything. 

Henry – Shady Dale Rodeo is Friday and Saturday, Round-up at 10:00 a.m. and Parade at 3:00 p.m. 

Pennamon – Request for road work on Campbell Crossroad from churches to McMichael Road. Senior Center 
Ribbon Cutting and Grand Opening on Friday. 

Presentations/Delegations:  

None 

Regular Agenda: 

Old Business: 

Janitorial Services Bid Award: 
Mr. Benton noted the Janitorial Services Contract is up for renewal.  Staff has advertised for bids and only 1 bid 
was received from our current provider.   
 
Comm. Henry made motion to accept bid from Wildfire Industries for a 2-year contract in the amount of 
$43,200 annually, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
  
Courthouse Maintenance and Repair Project – Carter Watkins Architects: 

Mr. Benton noted we previously put out  
 
Mr. Ben Carter noted in 1998 his firm was hired for the renovation project.  Adornato Electric did an electrical 
upgrade in 1993.  The aspect of what needs to be done include down spouts, the roof, heating and air units, 
windows, and tiles.  
 
Comm. Pennamon suggested setting up a Called Meeting and Work Session to discuss the cost.  
 

New Business: 

Jasper County Library Board of Trustees Appointments: 

Mr. Benton noted that Melba Bridges, Kristy Burton, and Mary Camp all have terms expiring on July 1.  All 
three persons are willing to serve an additional six year term.  

Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Melba Bridges, Kristy Burton, and Mary Camp to the Jasper County 
Library Board of Trustees for a six year term beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2025, Henry 
seconded; passed unanimously. 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

 

Jasper County Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment: 
 
Shane Sealy noted that they have an open position on the Zoning Board of Appeals, the position has been 
advertised and only one application was received from Mr. Pat Tria. 
 
Mr. Tria explained to the Board is interest in serving on the Board. 
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to appoint Pat Tria to serve on the Jasper County Zoning Board of Appeals for a 
3-year term effective immediately, Stunkel seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
The Georgia Foundation for Public Health – Recreation Grant: 

Mr. Wyley Deleza noted Jasper County Recreation Department has received a grant in the amount of 
$10,000.00 funded by the Georgia Foundation for Public Health LTD.   
 
Wyley Deleza pursued the grant and noted that the funds will be used for new flag football equipment for each 
participant, NFL Flag registration for each participant, and supplies including food and water, t-shirts, water 
bottles, end of season trophies, etc. 
 
Mr. Benton explained that grant funds have already been received and will not be utilized until FY 2020. 
 
The Recreation Department is requesting the Board of Commissioners Commit the grant funds received in FY 
2019 to be spent during the FY 2020 fall football season.   
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to commit $10,000 in FY 2019, Georgia Foundation for Public Health grant 
proceeds, to the Recreation Department for the use of the proceeds in FY 2020 as described, Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 
 
 
Budget Amendment FY2019 Fundraiser Revenue – Recreation:  
 
Johnathan Green, Recreation Director noted Jasper County Recreation Department conducted several fund 
raising activities during FY 2019. Total revenue received from fundraising activities is $$19,142.40. Total cost 
expended to fundraising activities is $14,184.92. Remaining balance of $4957.48 to be used for; carpet for the 
batting cages and football equipment. 
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the FY 2019 Budget Amendment increasing Recreation Fundraising 
Revenue GL # 100-600-06100-00034-347510 in the amount of $19,142.40 and Increasing Recreation 
Fundraising Activities GL # 100-600-06100-00057-536000 in the amount of $19,142.40, Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 
 
Public Works Right-of-Way Mowing Equipment: 
Mr. Benton noted that additional equipment is needed to establish a second set of Right-of-Way Mowing 
Equipment. They would like to seek bids for a Tractor with 15’ Batwing Mower and Tractor with 10” Offset 
Mower. Jasper County Public Works currently operates two tractors, mowers and operators to mow 
approximately 250 miles of paved road right-of-way on County maintained roads. Historically, the Public 
Works mowing crew makes between 2.5 to 3 rounds of mowing each mowing season. Staff would like to 
develop specifications for the bid process. 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes June 3, 2019 – Regular Meeting  
 

 
Preston Campbell, Public Works Director noted he would like to purchase equipment to use for 12 months 
instead of 6 months. He would like the temperature controlled closed cabs with attachments that can be used 
during the off season.  
 
Comm. Jernigan made motion to authorize County Manager to work with the Public Works Director to develop 
and publish bid(s) for the necessary equipment to establish a second set of right-of-way mowing equipment with 
or without cab, Stunkel seconded;  passed unanimously. 
 
FY 2019 10-Month Financial Report: 
Dennis Pate, Finance Director reviewed the 10-month Financial Report.  (A copy of the report is attached and 
made a copy of the official minutes). 
 
Comm. Pennamon asked that the Board be sent an email when FLPA money comes in.  
 
County Attorney Items: 

Atty. Ozburn noted he will need an Executive session to discuss potential litigation.  

County Manager Items: 

None 
 
Citizens Comments: 
Charles Forsythe – Audit, mowing equipment, Financial Report. 
 
Executive Session: 

Comm. Henry made motion to go into Executive Session at 6:56 p.m. to discuss potential litigation; Jernigan 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to come out of Executive Session at 7:53 p.m., Henry seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Adjourn: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to adjourn at 7:53 p.m., Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Clerk, Sharon Robinson 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: June 10, 2019– Work Session  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

June 10, 2019 

Work Session Minutes 

5:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the work session to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance:   

Invocation: Commissioner Doug Luke 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Gerald 
Stunkel, Doug Luke 

Work Session: 

Mr. Benton gave an update regarding the tree that fell on the old Health Department. There was severe damage 
to the building, insurance will handle it from here. Our deductible is $1,000. 

Chairman Pennamon noted that the purpose of this meeting is to discuss the new PT-32 rollback changed. The 
new rollback rate is 15.412. The advertisement will be based on the decision tonight.  

Mr. Benton noted the new rollback rate gives us additional net increase in revenue of 27,381. We are poised to 
receive $93,663 from the Takeda property. The funds will be set aside for the special projects fund. Tentative 
budget is final as far as all of the increases. 

Mr. Benton noted the Hospital Administrator asked for an additional Mill. She was advised that that would 
cause a tax increase.  

It was a consensus that an Appropriation should be given to the hospital of $27,000. We will keep the budget as 
is, advertise it as approved and do a budget amendment in July or August. This item should be added to the 
August agenda.  

The meeting was adjourned at 6:12 pm. 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sheila Jefferson, Administrative Specialist 

 



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  July 1, 2019 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
Summary: 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve processing of check #’s 55392-55645 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Presentations and Delegations: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  July 1, 2019 
 
Subject:  FY 2018 CAFR Presentation 
 
Summary: 
Mark Hardison, Clifton, Lipford, Hardison and Parker will present the FY 2018 CAFR. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 



 

 

Old Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Right-of-Way Mowing Equipment Bid Award 
 
Summary:  
 
Bids were prepared and published per the following specs: 
 
0619-01 Tractor - Engine HP – 85-95; PTO HP - 75-85; Cab Type – Open with Canopy 
0619-02 Tractor - Engine HP – 85-95; PTO HP – 75-85, Cab Type – Enclosed Cab  
0619-03 Tractor – Engine HP – 100-110; PTO HP – 85-95; Cab Type – Open with Canopy 
0619-04 Tractor – Engine HP – 100-110; PTO HP – 85-95; Cab Type – Enclosed Cab   
 
All Tractor Bids included the following specs: 
Fuel – Diesel; Transmission – 12 Speed Minimum; Drive – Four Wheel Drive 
 
0619-05 Rotary Mower – 15’ Width; Deck Type – Batwing 
0619-06 Rotary Mower – 10’ Width; Deck Type – Single Wing Right Hand 
 
All Rotary Mower bids included the following specs: 
Decking Gauge – 7 Gauge; Tires – Laminated; Wheels – Dual Wing; Driveline – CAT 5; 
 
Received 22 Bids per attached list: 
Hays Tractor and Equipment - Kubota Tractors and Land Pride Rotary Mowers 
Ag-Pro - John Deere Tractors and John Deere Rotary Mowers 
Atlantic & Sothern - Massey Ferguson Tractors and Bush Hog Rotary Mowers 
Town N Country - Modern Ag Products Rotary Mowers 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners authorized Staff to seek bids for equipment to put together an 
additional Right-of Way Mowing Team including two tractors and two rotary mowers. 
 
Cost:   
Final cost based on bid award. 
Funding source to be determined. 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Discussion Needed 
 
  



Ju
n

e
 2

6
, 

2
0

1
9

1
0

:0
0

 a
m

N
a

m
e

B
id

 #
A

m
o

u
n

t

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

1
$

4
1

,2
9

0
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

1
$

4
1

,9
7

5
.0

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
1

$
4

2
,8

0
3

.8
0

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

2
$

4
8

,3
0

0
.0

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
2

$
5

0
,4

2
9

.1
8

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

2
$

5
1

,7
5

0
.0

0

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

3
$

4
3

,5
9

0
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

3
$

4
3

,7
2

5
.0

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
3

$
4

4
,5

9
6

.3
2

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

4
$

5
0

,5
9

5
.0

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
4

$
5

2
,2

2
1

.7
0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

4
$

5
3

,5
3

0
.0

0

T
o

w
n

 &
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
0

6
1

9
-0

5
$

1
5

,5
6

5
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

5
 O

p
ti

o
n

 1
$

1
7

,6
5

6
.5

0

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

5
$

1
8

,5
9

5
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

5
 O

p
ti

o
n

 2
$

1
8

,8
4

1
.5

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
5

$
1

8
,8

7
2

.3
9

T
o

w
n

 &
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
0

6
1

9
-0

6
$

1
2

,0
6

5
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

6
 O

p
ti

o
n

 1
$

1
5

,2
0

8
.0

0

A
g

 P
ro

0
6

1
9

-0
6

$
1

5
,4

7
6

.2
0

H
a

ys
 T

ra
ct

o
r 

&
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
0

6
1

9
-0

6
$

1
5

,5
9

5
.0

0

A
tl

a
n

ti
c 

&
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
0

6
1

9
-0

6
 O

p
ti

o
n

 2
$

1
6

,4
2

7
.5

0

R
ig

h
t-

o
f-

W
a

y
 M

o
w

in
g

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

B
id

 T
a

ll
y

 S
h

e
e

t



















































 

 

New Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority - New Board Member Approval 
 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority is recommending Janette Hyde to serve as a board member on 
the Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority Board. 
 
The term would be for four years and begin July1, 2019. 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Alcovy Shores Water & Sewerage Authority Board is comprised of three voting members. 
The term is four years. 
 
Currently, there is one open board member position. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve the Alcovy Shores Water Authority’s recommendation for Janette Hyde to serve on the Alcovy Shores 
Water & Sewerage Authority Board for a term of four years beginning July 1, 2019. 
  









 

 

New Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Courts 
 
Date:    July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Ocmulgee Circuit Public Defender’s Office - Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement 
  
 
Summary:  
 
The Ocmulgee Judicial Circuit, through the Georgia Public Defenders Council, contracts with Counties to 
provide the required indigent legal representation as set forth under the Georgia Indigent Defense Act of 2003. 
 
The contract is for the period July 1, 2019 thru June 30, 2020. 
 
Jasper County’s attorney has reviewed the contract. 
 
Background: 
 
Per O.C.G.A. 17-12-23, Jasper County is required to provide criminal defense legal representation for indigent 
persons accused of violating city or county ordinances or state laws. 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
Annual Cost - $48,847.39 
 
Already included in FY 2020 Budget. 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Motion to approve Chairman to execute the Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement for the period July 1, 
2019 to June 30, 2020 with an annual cost of $48,847.39 paid in monthly installments of $4070.62. 
 
  











 

 

New Business – Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: NEGRC Area Agency on Aging Contract – FY 2020 
 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Annual revenue contract with the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on Aging, to provide 
certain services through the Jasper County Senior Center. 
 
The contract is for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. 
 
The County attorney has reviewed the contract. 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners annually partners with the Northeast Georgia Regional 
Commission, Area Agency on Aging, to provide certain services to its senior residents through the Jasper 
County Senior Center. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
This is a revenue contract with a contract value of $93,972. 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Authorize Chairman to sign the contract with the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on 
Aging, to provide certain services through the Jasper County Senior Center. 
  

















 

 

New Business – Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: NEGRC Coordinated Transportation Contract – FY 2020 
 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Annual revenue contract with the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on Aging, to provide 
certain transportation services through the Jasper County Senior Center. 
 
The contract is for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. 
 
The County attorney has reviewed the contract. 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners annually partners with the Northeast Georgia Regional 
Commission, Area Agency on Aging, to provide certain transportation services to its elderly and disabled 
residents through the Jasper County Senior Center. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
This is a revenue contract with a minimum contract value of $27,000. 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve Chairman to sign the contract with the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on 
Aging, to provide certain transportation services for elderly and disabled residents of Jasper County through the 
Jasper County Senior Center. 
  











 

 

New Business – Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: G.A. Food Service Contract – FY 2020 
 
 
 
Summary:  
 
G.A. Food Service of Pinellas County Inc. has provided its annual contract to the Jasper County Board of 
Commissioners for the delivery of meals for the Jasper County Senior Center for the period July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2020. The meal prices did not increase from the FY 2019 contract. 
 
The County Attorney has reviewed the contract. 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners annually partners with the Northeast Georgia Regional 
Commission, Area Agency on Aging, to provide meals to certain individuals under the requirements of Title III 
of the Older Americans Act. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
Total cost is based on number of meals procured by the Jasper County Senior Center during the contract period. 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Authorize Chairman to sign the contract as presented with G.A. Food Service of Pinellas County Inc. for the 
purchase of meals under the requirements of Title III of the Older Americans Act, through the Jasper County 
Senior Center for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. 
  









 

 

New Business – Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   July 1, 2019 
 
Subject: Senior Center Budget Amendments – FY 2019 – Additional Funding from NEGRC AAA 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on Aging, has provided the Jasper County Senior 
Center with additional FY 2018 Funding as follows: 
 
General reimbursement grant - $4500.00 
NSIP-State Home Delivered Meals - $615.16 
Income tax Check-off Home Delivered Meals - $175.76 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Northeast Georgia Regional Commission, Area Agency on Aging periodically offers additional funding for 
the Jasper County Senior Center in addition to the general funding. 
 
The following additional funding amounts have been received by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 
$4500.00 
$615.16 
$175.76 
Total Received - $5290.92 
 
These monies have been received and deposited. 
 
Cost:   
 
None 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve a budget amendments increasing the Senior Center GL # 100-600-06200-00053-535000 Facility 
Expansion Expenditure in the amount of $4500 and increasing Senior Center GL # 100-600-06200-00053-
531100 General Supplies in the amount of $790.92 as presented. 
 
  











1 
 

FUNDING ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY SHEET 

NORTHEAST GEORGIA REGIONAL COMMISSION/AREA AGENCY ON AGING 

 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME: Jasper County Board of Commissioners  

BUDGET AMENDMENT # 2019‐02 

EFFECTIVE DATE: March 19, 2019          Date to Contractor: April 5, 2019 

This Funding Adjustment Summary Sheet amends certain amounts reflected in Annex C and D in the current NEGA RC contract 

or the immediate Funding Adjustment Summary Sheet, as applicable. This document and all attachments are hereby 

incorporated into the contract and in the DAS Data System. Terminology, terms and conditions stated within the NEGRC RC 

contract will remain the same unless separately amended through written action of both parties. 

Current Funding  Adjustment (Net Change)  Adjusted Funding 

Federal $ 52,440.32  Federal $      ________  Federal $ 52,440.32 

State     $ 35,700.52  State     $     175.76  State     $  35,876.28 

Match   $   5,831.00  Match   $        _______  Match   $    5,831.00 

Total   $   93,971.84  Total     $      175.76  Total   $    94,147.60 

  

Amendments Only in Funding Categories 
Marked 

Amended Amounts Revise and Replace Prior 
Amounts in the Contract 

The Attached Annexes Revise and Replace 
Prior Annexes to the Contract 

A. ☐   Title III Older Americans Act 

           Title IIIC1‐Congregate Meals 
 

           Title IIIC2‐Home Delivered Meals 
 

          Title IIIB Supportive Services 

Service: _Congregate Meals‐Title IIIC1________
Total approved budget for this fund source: ____ 
 
Service: _Home Delivered Meals‐Title IIIC2______ 
Total approved budget for this fund source:  ____ 
 

B. ☐  Community Based Services   

    (CBS) 

Service: ___Home Delivered Meals__________
Total approved budget for this fund source: _____ 
 

C.    ☒   Income Tax Check‐off    

               (CKOF)  

Service: __Home Delivered Meals____________
Total approved budget for this fund source: 
$175.76 
Increase of $175.76 
 
 

Annex C Area Plan Fund Source Summary 
Report by Provider 
Annex D Area Plan Budget Service Summary 
by Provider 
WellSky Area Plan Budget Comparison by 
Providers Report 
  

D.    ☐  ACL Nutrition Services Incentive 

Program (NSIP) 
‐FEDERAL ONLY 
 
 

Service: __Home Delivered Meals_________
Total approved budget for this fund source: _____ 
 
Service: __________________________________ 
Total approved budget for this fund source: _____ 

E.    ☐  NSIP‐State  Service: __Home Delivered Meals________
Total approved budget for this fund source: ____ 
 

F.    ☐  NSIP SSBG Supplemental  Service: __Home Delivered Meals________
Total approved budget for this fund source: _____ 

 



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #2019.07.0A 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-535000 Facility Expansion Expenditure                               $4,500.00 
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS    Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC AAA Revenue   $4,500.00          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
  



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #2019.07.01B 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-531100 General Supplies                                    $615.16 
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS    Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC AAA Revenue   $615.16          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
  



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #2019.07.01C  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-531100 General Supplies                                    $175.76 
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS    Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00034-334100 NGRC AAA Revenue   $175.76          

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
  



Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center  
 
Date: 6/3/19 
 
Subject: Senior Center Budget Amendments – FY 2019 – CDBG Facility Expansion Expenditures  
 
Summary:  
 
At the 6-11-2018 BOC Meeting, the Board of Commissioners voted to accept the bid for temporary 
relocation rental services from St. James AME for $17,700.  
 
Funding for the future expenditure was approved to come from Fund Balance that would be generated 
by the Senior Center FY 2018 Budget activities. 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Jasper County BOC was awarded a CDBG grant for the renovation and addition to the Jasper County 
Senior Center. The construction project required a temporary relocation of all activities during the 
construction period. 

The Senior Center did relocate during the construction period. 

St. James AME was paid the $17,700. 

Sufficient FY 2018 Fund Balance was generated by the Senior Center FY 2018 activities as evidenced 
by the 2018 CAFR. 

 
Cost: 
 
Payment of $17,700 already paid. 
 
Funding source – FY 2018 Fund Balance 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve a budget amendment increasing the Senior Center GL Account # 100-600-06200-00053-
535000 Facility Expansion Expenditures in the amount of $17,700. 



 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #2019.07.01D  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2019 for Jasper County Government earlier in the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which requires adjustment 
from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the Senior Center 
budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- SENIOR CENTER      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06200-00053-535000 Facility Expansion Expenditure    $17,700.00  
 
GL ACCOUNT- EQUITIES & OTHER CREDITS      
Fund Balance       
        

                   
 
 
Adopted this _______ of       2019. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
             
BOC Chair       Finance Manager 
 
 
 


